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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (THE "GEM™) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE "STOCK EXCHANGE").

GEM has been positioned as a market designed o accommodate companies fo which a higher investment risk
may be affached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision fo invest only affer due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible fo high market volatility than securities fraded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities fraded on GEM.
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Chairman’s Statement EE#HE

The fiscal year of 2008 was a significant one for EPRO.
With the Group’s operation in China awarded the highest
Capability Maturity Model Integration Level 5 (CMMI-5)
accreditation, this marked the Group’s ability to reach
infernational soffware engineering standard as well as
strong recognition by customers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the group focus on improving the delivery
capability and quality which result in better efficiency.
The culture of self improvement and learning has been
established in the Group and consistently spread to
new members. The group also encounter new business
opportfunities that require unforeseeable capacity to fulfil.
The increase in custfomer orders and overall customer
satisfaction reveal the good will and forward direction of
the Group.

Apart from general software outsourcing, the Group
confinue fo move up the value chain towards industrial
focus that requires more domain knowledge than purely
technical skill set. This will provide a better platform for the
Group to secure repeating orders and custfomer loyalty in
long term.

PROSPECTS

In view of the overall economic condition, inflation is now
causing significant pressure to the Group; the Group will
continue fo implement the best measures in cost control
in addition to leveraging our partner’s resources.

With the outsourcing model being widely accepted in
both commercial and government sectors under the
globalization trend, it is believed that the Group’s service
will become more strategically to our customers and our
business will continue to grow in a prosperous way.

—ER)\HBRFELEFERFIZEEN —F -4
SERTEMNEERERRSMNE LRI
AR REERK([ERHCMMIDIKRE - B
EXAEEZIEREA IREE . TRABEPR
Al o

EZ e

FAN AEEEFREINEIREE UK
BUEF - AEERTEBHDEREENX
b —MRIEE - BZXEHETHMBEKE -
FEBMBIMARERAER - BT BN
URZEFPEEMEE LN RRTAKEHER
W RREFERITEA -

B—REAN AN AEBEERTTEER &
REEEZTEMNBMIFEMRMEENELE
HIER - REMES  WEBAAEERHEEETF
a NERBETHNTERRESEPSHE -

Al =

ERNERBEENRL  BRAEAAKERFTREKR
B 7o B T M AEEIRFE BRI - A< 5 H S 4
BEMRE BIEHIR A A -

EERLBET  HNHERE R R B
REZRA  RIEARE ST LB Y
EFREMRY  MAREMEBTEHELE
R o

# 00O ON 1d0d3d TVANNV

Hh
o




F o M M JILINIT Oddd

>

I

Chairman’s Statement FE#mRSE

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity fo express my gratitude fo all
management teams and our staff members for their dedication
and significant contributions in the past year. | would also like
fo express my sincere appreciation to all our fellow shareholders,
customers and business partners for their confinuous support and
confidence in the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Shaokang
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 September 2008
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Review of Operations #5[ElEE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review

For the year ended 30 June 2008, the Group recorded a revenue of
HK$50,825,000 (2007: HK$61,538,000), representing approximately
17.4% decrease in revenue as compared fo the last year. The
decrease in revenue was mainly affributable to certain significant
project having not yet been completed and finalized during the
year, and intense competition in the market of IT industry.

The total operating expenses were HK$41,405,000 for the year
(2007: HK$32,226,000), representing an increase of 28.5% as
compared to last year. The increases of operating expenses of the
Group for the year were mainly attributable fo staff costs for equity-
seftled share option expenses and setting up a new subsidiary in
Hefei.The expansion of headcount number as compared with the
last year was also affributable fo increase the operatfing expenses
of the Group for the year. Under the inflationary pressure, the Group
had exercised tight measures on cost control policies.

The Group recorded a profit attributable fo equity holders of the
Company of about HK$1,713,000 or 0.51 Hong Kong cents per
share for the year, compared to a profit atfributable fo equity
holders of the Company of about HK$825,000 or 0.34 Hong Kong
cents per share for the last year.

Capital Structure

The Group generally finances its operafion with infernally
generated cashflows, banking facilities and loan/funding from a
shareholder. The Group continued to exert stringent control over
treasury policies. The Company intends fo finance the Group’s
future operations, capital expenditure and the capital requirement
with the existing banking facilities.

As at 30 June 2008, the inferest rate of banking facilities was
charged at the range of Hong Kong prime rate ("P*)+1.5%/+0.5%
(2007: P+1.5%/-1%).

As at 30 June 2008, the Group had no bank and other loans (2007:
other loans which were repayable within one year approximately
HK$1.2 million).

During the year, the Company issued a fotal of 96,048,000 shares
pursuant fo a placing agreement dated 31 May 2007 entfered
info between the Company and an independent placing agent
at a placing price of HK$0.16 per share and completed on 4
July 2007. The net proceeds of the placing of approximately
HKS$14.4 million were used for the Group's business operation as
fo (i) approximately HK$4.0 million for establishing a research
and development centre in the PRC; (i) approximately HK$1.0
million for sefting up an office in Japan; and (iii) approximately
HK$9.4 million for general working capital. Save as this, the capital
structure of the Company had no material changes.

Material Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant
Investments

The Company had no significant investments and material
acquisitions or disposals for the year ended 30 June 2008.
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Review of Operations #5[ElEE

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year under review, the Group financed its operations
by internally generated cash flow, banking facilities provided by
banks, loan funding from a director and proceeds from placing.

As at 30 June 2008, the Group’s consolidated shareholders’ funds,
tofal current assets and net current assets were HK$27,107,000
(2007: HK$11,072,000), HK$39,746,000 (2007: HK$42,044,000) and
HK$24,424,000 (2007: HK$9,612,000) respectively.

In respect of the Group’s total current assets of HK$39,746,000 as
at 30 June 2008 (2007: HK$42,044,000), trade and bills receivable
(net of provision for doubtful debts) account for 11.2% (2007:33.6%)
whilst pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents accounted
for about 73.1% (2007: 58.6%). As at 30 June 2008, the Group’s
pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$29,041,000 (2007: HK$24,654,000).

As at 30 June 2008, the Group had no consolidated bank and
other loans (2007: short ferm bank and other loans approximately
HK$1,169,000).

All of the Group’s pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
bank and other loans were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Japanese Yen, Renminbi, Singapore dollars and United States
("US") dollars.

As at 30 June 2008, the Group had an aggregate composite
banking facilities from banks of approximately HK$9.8 million of
which there was not utilised (At 30 June 2007: utilised approximately
HK$2.9 million).

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, which was defined as the ratio of total
borrowings fo shareholders’ equity, reduced to 0% from 10.6% of
the previous year.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong
Kong dollars, US dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Australian
dollars, Canadian dollars and Japanese Yen.

During the year, the Group had entfered foreign exchange forward
contracts for hedging the foreign currency risk exposure on making
payment to the suppliers.
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Review of Operations #5[ElEE

The Group requires all its operating units to use forward currency
contracts to eliminate the foreign currency exposures for currencies
other than US dollars and on any individual transactions in excess
of HK$500,000 or equivalent, for which payment is anficipated
more than one month after the Group has entered info a firm
commitment for a sale or purchase.The forward currency contracts
must be in the same currency as the hedged item. It is the Group’s
policy not to enfer info forward contracts until a firm commitment
is in place.

The Group has no foreign currency contracts outstanding af 30
June 2008 (2007: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2008, the Company had contingent liabilities in
respect of corporate guarantees for banking facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries in an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$18.3 million (2007: approximately HK$28.3 million). At the
balance sheet dafe, such faciliies were not utilised by the
subsidiaries (2007: utilised by the subsidiaries to the extent of the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$2.9 million).

The Group had execufed performance bonds and advance
payment bonds of approximately HK$0.3 milion (2007:
approximately HK$0.3 million) in respect of cerfain services
provided by the Group.

Charges on Assets

The banking facilities of the Group are secured by:

@) corporate guaranfees in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$18.3 million executed by the Company
(2007: approximately HK$28.3 million); and

(i) pledge of certain of the Group’s tfime deposits amounting
to approximately HK$10.2 million (2007: approximately
HK$15.4 million).

Deployment on Human Resources

As at 30 June 2008, the number of staff of the Group was 279
(2007: 216). Staff remuneration is reviewed once a year or as the
management deems appropriate. Changes in remuneration are
based on a range of factors including the Group’s performance,
the competitiveness of remuneration with the external market, and
individual employee’s performance during the year. Employees
were paid at fixed remuneratfion with discretionary bonus and
benefits of medical insurance, mandatory provident fund, share
options and necessary training.
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Directors” and Senior Management's Biographies EE &k e EEEEE

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and of the
senior management of the Group are set out below.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Shaokang (&4), aged 43, is the chairman of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2002 and is responsible for overall
strategy planning, management and development of the Group.
Mr. Huang has over 16 years of experience in the management
of various companies which invest mainly on the IT and electronic
industry. He has solid experiences in trade and business in the
People’s Republic of China, Singapore and Hong Kong. Mr. Huang
studied in the Physics Department in the University of Hui Zhou, the
People’s Republic of China from 1983 to 1986.

Mr.CHOW Siu Kwong (JEJE¥), aged 38, is the chief executive officer
of the Group. He joined the Group in 2000 and is responsible for
development of Group’s software technology and methodology.
Mr. Chow has 16 years of experience in the IT industry and has
worked for key IT solution providers before joining the Group. He
graduated from Victoria University (formerly known as Victoria
University of Technology), Australia, with a Bachelor's degree and
a Master's degree in Computer Science. He also holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration.

Mr. LIU Lin (#I#F), aged 38, is an executive director of the Group and
a director of Shanghai EPRO Software Company Limited and the
general manager of EPRO Systems Limited.He joined the Company
in 2002 and had taken up various senior positions in IT companies
in the People’s Republic of China and the United States before
joining the Group. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor of Science in Computer
Science from the Beijing University of Posts & Telecommunications
and a Master of Science degree in Computer Science from
Columbia University, the United States.

Non-executive Director

Mr.YIP Sam Lo (¥ =), aged 61, is a non-executive director of the
Group. He joined the Group in 1992 responsible for the business
development of the Group. Mr.Yip has over 30 years of experience
in the IT industry. Prior to joining the Group, he was the regional
manager of a major U.S. computer company. Mr. Yip graduated
from the University of Texas, the US with a Bachelor's degree in
Mathematics and from the Texas A & M University, the US with a
Master’s degree in Computing Science.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies 2R e SR ERERE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LU Wei (B/%), aged 51, is an associate professor at University
of Science and Technology of China. He has over 18 years of
experience in financial management and many years of practical
experience in management consulting for UN organizations and
other international institutions. Mr. Lu was working with a Sino-
Canadian Training and Consulting Institute since 1988 fo 1994,
He holds a Master's degree in engineering and a PhD degree in
the University of Science and Technology of China.

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai (75#&f&), aged 45. Mr. Fong had obfained a
bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a master’'s degree in Business Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Fong has gained
more than 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
finance area and services the private and listed public companies
in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHANG Chung Wai (5&f#1%7), aged 43. Mr. Chang graduated
from the University of Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Computer Science and Statistics. He also holds a Master
of Technology Management degree in Information Technology
Management (MTM - [TM) from the Hong Kong University of
Science & Technology. Mr. Chang has over 20 years’ experience
in information technology field, of which over 15 years’ experience
is in finance and banking sectors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Chiu Hung, Alex (FR€3), aged 42, is the company
secretary of the Company, and oversees the legal, corporate and
compliance matters of the Group. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration, major in Finance. He has
been working with several listed and multinational companies for
over 15 years. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries.
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Directors’” and Senior Management's Biographies EEK SR EEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHAN Yuk Fong, Bango (&%), aged 39, is the general
manager of the Hong Kong operation. She joined the Group

in 1998 and is responsible for managing project delivery. Ms.

Chan has 16 years of working experience in the IT fields and has
worked for different enterprises covering the business domains
of felecommunications, finance and manufacturing. She holds
a Bachelor's degree of Information System, Commerce from
University of Western Sydney, Nepean and a Master’s degree in
Project Management from University of Sydney.

Mr. HE Hua Guang (fifZ£3%), aged 42, is the general manager of
professional services of the Group. He joined the Group in 1997
and is responsible for the development and management of the
Group’s provision of IT professional services business. Mr. He has
over 16 years of experience in the IT field. He graduated from the
Harbin Institute of Technology, the People’s Republic of China, with
a Bachelor’s degree in Mechanical & Electronic Engineering and
a Master's degree in Engineering Management.
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Report of the Directors EBEHRE

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
30 June 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14
fo the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June 2008 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 42 tfo 47.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year (2007: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is
set out on page 124. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 fo the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set outf in notes 24 and 25 fo the
financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated,
which would oblige the Company fo offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis fo existing shareholders.
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Report of the Directors EBEHRE

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 30 June 2008.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in nofe 26 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statfement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s share premium account, in accordance with
the Companies Law (2000 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, is
distributable fo the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The share premium account may also be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares. At 30 June 2008, the Company did not
have any reserves available for distribution.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales fo the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 49% (2007: 41%) of the total sales for
the year and the largest customer included therein amounted fo
approximately 21% (2007: 17%).

Purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 83% (2007: 55%) of the fotal purchases for the
year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted fo approximartely 28% (2007: 28%).

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had
any beneficial inferest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the "Board”) of the Company during the
year and up fo the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. HUANG Shaokang
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong
Mr. LIU Lin

Non-executive director:
Mr.YIP Sam Lo
Independent non-executive direcfors:

Mr. LU Wei
Mr. FONG Fuk Wai
Mr. CHANG Chung Wai

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. LIU Lin, Mr. FONG Fuk Wai and Mr. CHANG Chung
Wai shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the said
meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. LU Wei, Mr. FONG Fuk Wai and Mr.
CHANG Chung Wai and as at the datfe of this report still
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 10 fo 12
of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service confract with the Company which
is not deferminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject fo shareholders’ approval at general
meetings and reviewed by the remuneration committee on a
continuous basis. Other emoluments are recommended by the
Company's remuneration committee with reference to directors’
duties, responsibiliies and performance and the result of the
Group.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as the related party fransactions and connected tfransactions
disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, no director had
a material inferest, either directly or indirectly, in any confract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were enfered into or existed during the year.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART XV
OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE
(THE "SFO")

A. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 30 June 2008, the inferests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which are required (a) fo be notified fo the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant fo Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of
the SFO); or (b) pursuant fo section of 352 of the SFO to be
entered into the register referred to therein; or (¢) pursuant
fo Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules to be nofified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange as follows:
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(1EF

Aggregate long position in shares and (in respect 1.
of positions held pursuant to equity derivatives)

underlying shares and in debentures of the

Company and its associated corporation(s)

a. Inferest in shares (other than pursuant fo
equity derivatives such as share options,
warrants fo subscribe or convertible bonds)

(i) the Company

Name of Director

E3ps

Mr.Yip Sam Lo
E-@EE

Mr.Huang Shaokang
BORRE

Mr. Liu Lin
Il v

Notes

Wi

Capacity

&t

Founder of a discretionary frust
RRETZEMA

Interest of a controlled corporation
R

Beneficial owner

BEEAA

Interest of a controlled corporation
REHIAAER

RARE REBEEE 2 Bk (5
BRERATETIABAEZARM
) HERORESDZHER
&

a. Rk zEzE(REBRADT
ETAHIMEBRRE - AR
BrRBREER T RRE
7 ) ERRIN)

() ARA

Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares issued share
inferested capital
BEEEY hEBfT
EERYA BREEAL
26,257,720 7.81%
91,633,824 27.26%
24,162,510 7.19%
9,609,489 2.86%
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of the Company were held by Kingston
View Infernational Limited (“Kingston View"),
a corporation wholly owned by Mr. Liu Lin.
Accordingly, Mr. Liu was deemed to be
interested in 9,609,489 shares of the Company
held by Kingston View.

Nofes: B 5
As at 30 June 2008, these 26,257,720 shares a RZEENFAA=+H-
of the Company were held by Araucarea 26,257,720k & 2~ & & @
Holdings Limited ("Araucarea”), a corporation fAraucarea Holdings
wholly owned by TUYF Company Limited as Limited ([ Araucareal)# A -
frustee of The TUYF Unit Trust, a unit trust of AraucareazZTUYF Company
which all of the units in issue were owned LimitedAThe TUYF Unit Trust
by HSBC International Trustee Limited ("HSBC BRAFHZEHBZRR M
Trustee”) in its capacity as the trustee of The The TUYF Unit Trust/ —IHE
TUYF Family Trust, a discretionary family trust of ffzst HEMBEFHTEMNAR
which the objects include the family members HSBC International Trustee
of Mr.Yip Sam Lo. Limited ([HSBC Trustee]) M
The TUYF Family Trustz{55E
ABHB¥H - The TUYF Family
TrustAl B —H 2 RRIEET
HEBZARBEE=ZHLEZRK
BB e
Accordingly, Mr.Yip Sam Lo, as a founder of The It # = B %k £ F AThe
TUYF Family Trust, was deemed to be inferested TUYF Family Trustz &l A -
in 26,257,720 shares of the Company held by W R B WAraucarea B 2
Araucarea. 26,257,720 &A1 A R 15+ HE
B o
As at 30 June 2008, these 91,633,824 shares of b. RZTETNFXRA=Z+TH"
the Company were held by China Dynamic China Dynamic Enterprises
Enferprises Limited (*China Dynamic”), a Limited ([ China Dynamic])
corporation wholly owned by Mr. Huang B AR A 291,633,8240% %
Shaokang. Accordingly, Mr. Huang was e EE—BamRRAELR
deemed to be inferested in 91,633,824 shares Ao BEEWE RMNChina
of the Company held by China Dynamic. Dynamicfi# A 291,633,824
RARBRID PR R ©
Apart from the above, as at 30 June 2008, BrEoh RZFTTNFRA
Mr. Huang Shaokang personally owned =tA - E®ELREEBAAES
24,162,510 shares of the Company. 24,162,510 A2 AR ©
As at 30 June 2008, these 9,609,489 shares c. RZEENFAA=+H8H"

Kingston View International
Limited ([Kingston View])#
BARREF29,609,4898 fx 17 -
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Associated corporation - EPRO Systems
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company)

Name of Director Note Capacity

BEpA i L

Mr.Yip Sam Lo 1 Founder of a discretionary
frust

E-REE PREFEZAMA

As at 30 June 2008, these 5,112,991 shares of
EPRO Systems Limited were held by Araucarea,
a corporation wholly owned by TUYF Company
Limited as trustee of The TUYF Unit Trust, a unit
frust of which all of the units in issue were
owned by HSBC Trustee in its capacity as the
trustee of The TUYF Family Trust, a discretionary
family trust of which the objects include the
family members of Mr.Yip Sam Lo.

Accordingly, Mr.Yip Sam Lo, as a founder of The
TUYF Family Trust, was deemed to be interested
in 5,112,991 non-voting deferred shares of
EPRO Systems Limited held by Araucarea.

Inferests in debentures
The Company or its associated corporations
had not issued any debentures.
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voting deferred

Percentage of
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associated non-voting
corporation deferred shares
REBEEHE EERTERR
BECERTE BETROEY
EEROHE Bak
5,112,991 33.86%
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c. Intferests in underlying shares (in respect of
position held pursuant fo equity derivatives)

0)

(i)

the Company (physically settled equity
derivatives)

(1) PrePO share option plan

Name of Director Capacity
EEpE =27

Mr.Yip Sam Lo Beneficial owner
HoEStAE EnEAA

Details of the above share options as
required fo be disclosed by the GEM
Listing Rules have been disclosed in
note 25 under (a) Pre-IPO share option
plan to the financial statements.

(2) Share option scheme

Name of Director Capacity

EEnR &1

Mr. Chow Siu Kwong
IS EnEAA
Details of the above share options as
required fo be disclosed by the GEM
Listing Rules have been disclosed in note
25 under (b) share option scheme to the
financial statements.

Associated corporation
No such interest was reported by the
Directors.

Beneficial owner

c. REMEOPzER(HR
BERAGTETAREZAR

ms)

@

Number of
underlying
shares in
respect of the
options granted
ERHBRESR
ZAEBRROEE

1,986,367

Number of
underlying
shares in
respect of the
options granted
ERHBRESR
ZAEBRROEE

2,880,000

(ii)

ARAR(EMRMABEA
PTETR)

() ERADBERA
MR B

Percentage of
the underlying
shares over

the Company’s
issued

share capital
HBERDIEERLQE
ERITREBDL

0.59%

EREIZIR E A
REARE 2 ERE
S DA B R W M
25/ (a) &R A B
AT B AR A £ I P o

(2) EREE

Percentage of
the underlying
shares over

the Company’s
issued

share capital
HBERIEERQE
ERITREBDL

0.86%
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2. Aggregate short position in shares and (in respect
of positions held pursuant fo equity derivatives)
underlying shares and in debentures of the
Company and its associated corporation(s)

No such short position was reported by the
Directors.

(2) CHIEF EXECUTIVES

1. Aggregate long position in shares and (in respect
of positions held pursuant to equity derivatives)
underlying shares and in debentures of the
Company and its associated corporation(s)

No such interest was reported by the chief executive
of the Company.

2. Aggregate short position in shares and (in respect
of positions held pursuant fo equity derivatives)
underlying shares and in debentures of the
Company and its associated corporation(s)

No such short position was reported by the chief
executive of the Company.

In addition tfo the above, as at 30 June 2008, certain
Directors are holding sharesinthe Hong Kong subsidiaries
of the Company in a non-beneficial capacity, solely for
the purpose of complying with the previous requirements
of a minimum of two shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2008, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had,
under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were
they taken fo or deemed fo have under such provisions
of the SFO, any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) or any interest which were required
fo be entered info the register kept by the Company
pursuant fo section 352 of the SFO or any interest which
were required fo be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant fo the required standard of
dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to in
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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B. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS B.

As at 30 June 2008, the inferests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

1. Aggregate long position in shares and (in respect of
positions held pursuant fo equity derivatives) underlying
shares of the Company
a. Interests in shares (other than pursuant fo equity

derivatives such as share opftions, warrants fo
subscribe or convertible bonds)

Name of Shareholder Capacity

RRER 5

China Dynamic Beneficial owner
BREAA

Ms. Yip Chi Yu Inferest of spouse

gt i 5=

Araucarea Beneficial owner
BRBAA

TUYF Company Limited Trustee
fEEA

HSBC Trustee Trustee
A

Ms. Tai Fung Founder of a discretionary trust

#Ext SEREZERA

FERR

R-ZENFAAZE REESREE
WP E336 R AR TFE 2 &R MR
BRAD TS RARBRIA P 2 B LAR
mF

1. REARAEODR(EBERATETA
FEZARBRMS)MEEROPZHER

2
a. REhzEZ(REBRATETA
(PanfEReiE - 7R 2 R iERE

AR E A ) BRROM)
Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares issued share
interested Notes capital

FRREzZERYA Wizt CRIRAEAM

91,633,824 M 27.26%
115,796,334 @ 34.45%
26,257,720 @) 7.81%
26,257,720 () 7.81%
26,257,720 ) 7.81%
26,257,720 o 7.81%




Report of the Directors EBEHRE

Noftes:

The interest of China Dynamic has also been
disclosed as interest of Mr. Huang Shaokang
in the above paragraph under “Disclosure of
Interests under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance - Directors and Chief Executives”.

Ms. Yip Chi Yu was deemed fo be interested
in an aggregate of 115,796,334 shares of the
Company through inferest of her spouse, Mr. Huang
Shaokang.

The interest of Araucarea has also been disclosed
as interest of Mr.Yip Sam Lo in the above paragraph
under "Disclosure of Inferests under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance - Directors and
Chief Executive”.

As at 30 June 2008, these 26,257,720 shares of the
Company were held by Araucarea, a corporation
wholly owned by TUYF Company Limited as trustee of
The TUYF Unit Trust, a unit frust of which all of the units
in issue were owned by HSBC Trustee in its capacity
as the trustee of The TUYF Family Trust, a discretionary
family trust of which the objects include the family
members of Ms. Tai Fung. Accordingly, Ms. Tai, as a
founder of The TUYF Family Trust, was deemed to be
inferested in 26,257,720 shares of the Company held
by Araucarea.

—

ar

China DynamicZ # 5 IE R
FRIBEES RS GIEXV
BEEEE EFRERHNNT
EIRBERELRAE I EE -

REMLETWERBRBELE
ELEAaLEzZERmRAEF
115,796,334/ A8 X B f £ 7
B -

AraucareaZ #Em IME R FE
[REBEFESH RAEROIEXVED B
Bz -EEREBATE IH
BAE-MAE N -

RZZEZTENFRRA=Z+TH"
26,257,720k 7~ A & I 19
Araucarea#§F - Araucared
ZTUYF Company Limited
LAThe TUYF Unit TrustZ 5t A
S 2EHAZ AR MThe
TUYF Unit Trusts — BB {5
T HEHBEEITEMHHSBC
TrusteelAThe TUYF Family
TrustZ EsEAF M HEH - The
TUYF Family TrustBl&—18%
BEREET EXHABLER
BEXLTZHRKEKE - Bt &
Bl Zz = £ AThe TUYF Family
Trustz Bl %% A ¥R B R®
Araucarea#§ B 226,257,720
MRARBIRD PR R ©

# W 0O ON LIOdIY TVNNNV




a
€ )
Report of the Directors EEE R
b. Inferestsin underlying shares (in respect of positions b. MREBRG 2 (ARERARDT
= held pursuant to equity derivatives) STARBAGZREME)
g @) the Company (physically settled equity () AR EURABRALTE
- derivatives) IH)
.
= Number of
g underlying Percentage of
© Name of ordinary shares issued share
5 Shareholder Capacity interested Noftes capital
. HEERZ EE&T
BRERES ) R EREA Bk BAFD L
f
458 Ms. Tai Fung Interest of spouse 1,986,367 ()] 0.59%
I~ HEZT fofgigas
N
) Note: B &E
1. Ms. Tai Fung was deemed to be inferested 1. BELZIHERBBELR
in 1,986,367 share options of the Company BE=ZFELEEz DTN
through inferests of her spouse, Mr. Yip Sam N R A KI1,986,36717 B8
Lo. fREEPERER
Details of the above share options as iR EIER TR BIR
required to be disclosed by the GEM Listing EARECEREFED
Rules have been disclosed in note 25 under BB R & M 25 2
(a) Pre-IPO share option plan to the financial (O) BIR 2 AR R Al B R
statements. FTEIR -

2. Aggregate short position in shares and (in respect of 2. RAEARBRMR(HBERAITETAR
positions held pursuant to equity derivatives) underlying RBAEZEBRME)MERMDP 2XEE
shares of the Company Ey
No such interest was reported to the Company. WERAR G 2MAER

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2008, no person, BEXFIEBEEN RZTEZENFESA=T
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the shares or underlying share of the Company that was R R 2 ERERE ©

required to be recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from those as disclosed in the above paragraph under
"Disclosure of Interest under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance - A. Directors and Chief Executives”, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted fo
any directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 year
or age, or were any rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party fo any arrangement fo enable fo
the directors of the Company to acquire such rights in any other
body corporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors, initial management shareholders or their
respective associates of the Company has an interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the business of
the Group.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Details of the legal proceedings of the Group are set out in note
30 fo the financial statements.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 21 October 2008 to Thursday, 23 October 2008 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the Company’'s forthcoming annual general meeting,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure that
all the share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the
Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 20 October 2008.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 had
been audited by CWCC Certified Public Accountants.

The financial statements for the years ended 30 June 2006,
2007 and 2008 have been audited by Cachet Certfified Public
Accountants Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Shaokang
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 September 2008
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The board of directors of the Company (the "Board”) is pleased
to present this Corporate Governance Report in the Company’s
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2008.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance practices in maintaining and promoting shareholder
value and investor confidence and has devoted considerable
efforts fo identifying and formulating corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group’s
business.

The Company has applied the principles set outf in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 15 fo The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Growth Enterprise Market (the "GEM Listing Rules”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”).

Inthe opinion of the Board, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code,
except for the code provision A.4.1, throughout the year ended 30
June 2008. Such code provision has subsequently been complied
with by the Company. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company as well as the details of the foregoing
deviation of code provision are summarized below.

The Board is committed fo enhance the corporate governance
practices and standards of the Company appropriate fo the
conduct and growth of its business and to review such practices
and standards regularly to ensure that they comply with the
statutory and professional standards and align with the latest
developments.

A. THE BOARD
A.T RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The overall management and control of the Company’s
business are vested in its Board. The Board is responsible
for establishing policies, strategies and plans, providing
leadership in the attainment of the objective of creating
value to shareholders, and on behalf of the shareholders,
overseeing the Company's financial performance. All
directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with the standards of applicable laws and regulations, fake
decisions objectively and acts in the inferests of the Company
and its shareholders atf all times.
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The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the senior
management, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each
director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expenses, upon reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are led by the Chief Executive Officer
and senior management of the Company. The Board
has also delegated a schedule of responsibilities fo the
senior management of the Company, which include the
implementation of decisions of the Board, the co-ordination
and direction of day-fo-day operation and management
of the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating
and monitoring the production and operating plans and
budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control systems.
The Board has the full support of the senior management fo
discharge its responsibilities.

The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior
to any significant fransactions entered into by the foregoing
officers and senior management.
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A.2 BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises the following directors:

Executive direcftors:

Mr. Huang Shaokang, Chairman of the Board

Mr. Chow Siu Kwong, Chief Executive Officer and
member of the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Liu Lin

Non-executive director:
Mr.Yip Sam Lo

Independent non-executive direcftors:

Mr. Lu Wei, member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Fong Fuk Wai, Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Chang Chung Wai, member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee

The list of all directors (by category) is set out under the
section headed "Corporate Information” in this annual report
and is also disclosed in all corporate communications issued
by the Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules from time
o fime.The independent non-executive directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications of the Company.
The biographical details of the directors of the Company
are set out under the section headed "Directors’ and Senior
Management's Biographies” in this annual report. None of
the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 30 June 2008, the Board has at
all times met the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules
relating fo the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with af least one independent
non-executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications  and accounting and related financial
management expertise. The Company has also adopted the
recommended best practice under the CG Code for having
at least one-third of its Board members being independent
non-executive directors.

Alldirectors,including non-executive directorandindependent
non-executive directors, have brought a wide range of
valuable business expertise, experiences and professionalism
fo the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
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The Company has received a written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of its independent
non-executive directors independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.
Through active participation in Boards meetings, taking
the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of
interests and serving on Board committees, all independent
non-executive directors make various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company.

A.3 CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and dufies of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are carried out by different
individuals.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Huang Shaokang, who
provides leadership for the Board and ensures its effectiveness
in all aspects. With the support of the senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the directors
receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a
fimely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at
the Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer is Mr. Chow Siu Kwong, who is
in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations and focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.

A.4 APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election.

Mr. Lu Wei, Mr. Fong Fuk Wai and Mr. Chang Chung Wai (the
independent non-executive directors of the Company) have
been appointed for a specific term of two years whereas
Mr.Yip Sam Lo (the non-executive director of the Company)
was not appointed for any specific term till 30 June 2008.
To conform with the said code provision, the Company has
issued a lefter of appointment fo Mr.Yip Sam Lo confirming
his ferm of appointment for 2 years commencing on 1 July
2008.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles
of Association (the “Arficles of Association”). According fo
the Articles of Association, all directors of the Company are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.Accordingly, Mr. Liu Lin, Mr. Fong Fuk Wai and Mr. Chang
Chung Wai shall refire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Board recommended the re-appointment of
these three retiring directors standing for re-election at the
said annual general meeting. The Company’s circular, sent
fogether with this annual report, contains detailed information
of such directors.

Though the Company has not set up a nomination committee,
the Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of directors,
monitoring the appointment and succession planning of
directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors.The Company has adopted Directors
Nomination Procedures as written guidelines in providing
formal, considered and transparent procedures to the Board
for evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships.
Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry
out the selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal infegrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be
engaged fo carry out the recruitment and selection process
when necessary.

During the year ended 30 June 2008, the Board, through ifs
meetings held on 13 September 2007 (with the presence of Mr.
Chow Siu Kwong, Mr. Lu Wei, Mr. Fong Fuk Wai and Mr. Chang
Chung Wai) and 22 November 2007 (with the presence of
Mr. Huang Shaokang, Mr. Chow Siu Kwong, Mr. Liu Lin, Mr.Yip
Sam Lo, Mr. Lu Wei, Mr. Fong Fuk Wai and Mr. Chang Chung
Wai), has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board; made recommendation of the re-election of the retiring
directors standing for re-election at the 2007 annual general
meeting; assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive directors of the Company; and appointed Mr.
Liu Lin as the general manager of EPRO Systems Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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A.5 INDUCTION AND CONTINUING ASEEZ AR MIFEERE
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DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment, so as fo ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

The directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory
developments, and the business and market changes to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefings and professional development fo directors will be
arranged whenever necessary.

A.6 BOARD MEETINGS
Ab61 Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Schedules for regular Board meetings are normally agreed
with the directors in advance in order to facilitate them to
attend. In addition to the above, notice of at least 14 days is
given of a regular Board meeting. For other Board meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Draft agenda of each Board meeting is usually sent fo all
directors together with the notfice in order to give them an
opportunity fo include any other matters in the agenda for
discussion in the meeting.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting to keep the directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Group
and to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board
and each director also have separate and independent
access fo the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer, the Company Secretary, the
Qualified Accountant and other relevant senior management
of the Company normally attend regular Board meetings and,
where necessary, other Board and commitfee meetings fo
advise on business developments, financial and accounting
maftters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and
other major aspects of the Group.
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The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all
Board and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated fo directors for comments within a reasonable
fime affer each meeting and the final version is open for
directors’ inspection.

According fo current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder or a director, will be considered and dealt with
by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.The Articles
of Association contain provisions requiring directors to abstain
from voting and not fo be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving fransactions in which such directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.

A62 Directors” Atftendance Records in Board

Meetings

The Board has held a tofal of 8 Board meetings during the
year.The attendance records of each director at these Board
meetings are set out below:

Attendance/Number of

Name of Director Board Meetings

Executive directors

Mr. Huang Shaokang 4/8
Mr. Chow Siu Kwong 8/8
Mr. Liu Lin 5/8

Non-executive directors
Mr.Yip Sam Lo 4/8

Independent non-executive directfors

Mr. Lu Wei 6/8
Mr. Fong Fuk Wai 8/8
Mr. Chang Chung Wai 8/8
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A.7 MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ dealings in the Company'’s securities (the
"Own Code") on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the "Required Standard of Dealings”). Specific
enquiry has been made of the Company’s directors and
all of them have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Required Standard of
Dealings and the Own Code throughout the year ended 30
June 2008.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no
less exacting ferms than Required Standard of Dealings (the
"Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees”)
for securities tfransactions by employees who are likely to be
in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of
the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Code
for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees by the
employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established two Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees have been established with defined
written terms of reference and are available to shareholders
upon request. All the Board committees should report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of Board committees follow in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings set out in A.6.1
above.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
fo discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, af the Company’s expenses.
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B.1 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of four
members, being three independent non-executive directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Fong Fuk Wai (Chairman), Mr.
Chang Chung Wai and Mr.Lu Wei, and one executive director
of the Company, namely, Mr. Chow Siu Kwong.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to (i)
make recommendations on the establishment of procedures
for developing remuneration policy and structure of the
executive directors and the senior management, such policy
shall ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration; (i) make
recommendations on the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and the senior management; (iii) review
and approve the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and the senior management by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions; and (iv) review and approve
the compensation arrangements for the executive directors
and the senior management.

The Human Resources Department is responsible for collection
and administrafion of the human resources data and
making recommendations to the Remuneration Committee
for consideration.The Remuneration Committee consults with
the Chairman of the Board/Chief Executive Officer of the
Company about these recommendations on remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly and has
performed the following major works during the year ended
30 June 2008:-

- Review and recommendation of the granting of share
options of the Company;

- Review and recommendation of the remuneration
packages of executive directors and independent non-
executive directors of the Company; and

- Recommendation of the remuneratfion packages of
Mr. Liu Lin as the newly appointed general manager of
EPRO Systems Limited.
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B.2

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company
for the year ended 30 June 2008 are sef out in note 7 to the
financial statements contained in this annual report.

The aftendance records of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are set out as follows:

Name of Remuneration
Committee Member

Attendance/
Number of Meetings

Mr. Fong Fuk Wai (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Chow Siu Kwong 4/4
Mr. Chang Chung Wai 4/4
Mr. Lu Wei 4/4
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises a total of three members,
namely Mr. Fong Fuk Wai (Chairman), Mr. Chang Chung
Wai and Mr. Lu Wei, all of whom are independent non-
executive directors of the Company. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee also possesses the appropriate accounting
and financial management expertise. None of the members
of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s
existing external auditors.

The duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant
or unusual items raised by the Qualified Accountant or
external auditors before submission tfo the Board:; (ii) review
the relationship with the external auditors by reference fo
the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation fo the Board on
the appointment, re-appointfment and removal of external
auditors; and (iii) review the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company’s financial reporting system, infernal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.

During the year ended 30 June 2008, the Audit Committee
has held 4 meetfings and has reviewed the financial
statements, results announcements and reports for the year
ended 30 June 2007, for the 3 months ended 30 September
2007, for the six months ended 31 December 2007 and for
the 9 months ended 31 March 2008; the financial reporting
and compliance procedures; the report from the senior
management on the Company’s infernal control and risk
management; and considered the re-appointment of external
auditors. The external auditors were invited to attend one of
the meetings without the presence of executive directors to
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from the
audit and financial reporting matters.
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There are no material uncertainties relafing fo events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability fo confinue as a going concern. There is no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the re-appointment of external auditors.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee meetings
are set out as follows:

Name of Audit
Committee Member

Attendance/
Number of Meetings

Mr. Fong Fuk Wai (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Chang Chung Wai 4/4
Mr. Lu Wei 2/4

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2008.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of quarterly, interim and
annual reports, price sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements. The management has provided
such explanation and information fo the Board as necessary
fo enable the Board fo make an informed assessment of the
financial information and position of the Group put forward
fo the Board for approval.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the infernal control
system of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board is also responsible for maintaining an adequate
and effective infernal control system to safeguard the inferests
of the shareholders and the assets of the Company. During
the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.
Such review covered the financial, operational, compliance
and risk management aspects of the Group.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibiliies on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2008 is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report”in this annual
report.

A summary of audit and non-audit services provided by the
external auditors for the year ended 30 June 2008 and their
corresponding remuneration is as follows:
Nature of services Amount (HK$)

500,000
40,000

Audit services
Non-audit services

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Board believes that a tfransparent and timely disclosure
of the Group’s information will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision and to have
better understanding on the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining
contfinuing investor relations with the Company’s potential
and existing investors.

The Company mainfains a website at “www.epro.com.hk” as
a communication platform with shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Group’s business
developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access. Shareholders and investors may
write directly to the Company’s principal place of business at
Room 1501, 15th Floor, Tung Hip Commercial Building, 244-248
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong or via email fo “enquiry@
epro.com.hk” for any inquiries. Inquiries are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner.

The Board also considers that general meetings of the
Company provide a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as
the chairmen and/or other members of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Commifttee normally attend the annual
general meetings and other shareholders’” meetings of the
Company to answer questions raised.
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The Company continues fo enhance communications
and relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them acquainted of the
Group’s developments.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

As one of the measures o safeguard shareholders’ interests
and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
voting.

Besides, the rights of shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholders” meetings
are confained in the Articles of Associatfion. Details of such
rights are also included in all circulars sent to shareholders
and, where necessary, explained in the shareholders’
meetings.

When poll voting is conducted at a shareholder’s meeting,
the poll voting results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkgem.com) and the Company
(www.epro.com.hk) affer such meeting.

On behalf of the Board
HUANG Shaokang
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 September 2008
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CACkeEL
Cachet Certified Public Accountants Limited

RGEHG T HAAIRR ]

13F, Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
ERBFETITE128REE RE13FE

To the shareholders of EPRO Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of EPRO Limited
set out on pages 42 to 123, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheets as at 30 June 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the frue and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant tfo
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
o fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We do not assume responsibility
tfowards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit fo obtain reasonable assurance as fo whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the audifors’” judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s infernal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overalll
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate fo provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a frue and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30
June 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Cachet Certified Public Accountants Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Chi Yuen
Practising Certificate Number P02671

Hong Kong
22 September 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement #HREEHE
Year ended 30 June 2008 HE—ZEZNEAXNA=1+HILFE

2008
—RENF
HK$'000
FHET

50,825

(23,816)

27,009
10,193
(983)
(13,696)
(26,726)
(213)

0.51 centsil

N/ATER



Consolidated Balance Sheet EEEEEBER

30 June 2008 —ZZE\FARA=1H

2008
S i
HK$°000
FHBT

2,683

25
4,455

6,225

10,249
18,792

39.746

3,303
12,019

15,322

24,424

27,107

27,107

33,617
(6.560)

27,057
50

27,107
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #R& x4
Year ended 30 June 2008 EZ =TT N\FARA=1+HIFE

24,012

3,617 , 2721 @081y (17,440
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2008
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HK$°000
FHET
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2008
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HK$°000
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2008
—EBNEF
HK$’000
FEx

68
7,004
3,657

25,282

408
408

24,874

27,595

27,595

33,617
(6.022)

27,595
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Year ended 30 June 2008 HE—ZEZENEAA=1THIEE

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 15 March
2000 under the Companies Law (2000 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company were listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (the "GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”)
on 2 August 2000.

The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands.

The principal place of business of the Company is located
at Room 1501, 15/F, Tung Hip Commercial Building, 244-248
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group’s principal activities have not
changed and was involved in the provision of professional
information fechnology (*IT") contract services.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statfements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded fo the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statfements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) for the year ended
30 June 2008. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue fo be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. All significant
infercompany transactions and balances within the Group
are eliminated on consolidation.
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2.2

Notes to Financial Statements B &3k MiEE

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first fime for the current year's financial
statements. Except for in certain cases, giving rise to new
and revised accounting policies and additional disclosures,
the adoption of these new and revised standards and
interpretation has had no material effect on these financial
statements.

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(FRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HK(FRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRSs are as follows:

(a) HKAS 1 Amendment - Capital
Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make
disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the Group’s objectives,
polices and processes for managing capital.

(b) HKFRS 7 - Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate the
significance of the Group’s financial instruments
and the nature and extent of risks arising from
those financial instruments. The new disclosures
are included throughout the financial statements.
While there has been no effect on the financial
position or results of comparative of the Group,
comparative information has been included where
appropriate.

Year ended 30 June 2008 HZE—ZEZENEAA=1HIFE

2.2 $4I5] RAGIEE] 2 BT
B £ 2 B

AEEERIANANEFR 2T BRREMBAT
el RBIERIBERM B RELER - RRNE
TIEABRBIMT RGBT 28 BER
ARBEIMNEEIN - AR TR RRIEFT
HEHRREH AP BHRRITBEEAZE -

BEEENEIR BEAKE

(&7T)

BEMBHRELEN ESRMIA : KE
EW

6 (BRMBmE PHBERE RRE
2EZ8g)
REE 105

B (BB BRE BEMBRSLER
2EZEE) F2R-—EER
REE15R EEFEBNR5

RZ S RERT B BRI G ER
ZEZBREMT

(a) BEBIERIEIH
(53T) - BARE
WERT R EAEBEELHE - F51
BHREREAEETLHAEEETEE
Az BE - BERERF °

BEUBREEDET
HK-E&®MIA: KR

S BIR T MR TR - RS TR
EREETFHFEESBTIAL
EEY  URZELMTARES
B2 1E REE o AR BRES
G—BHHRFRBERERE - @&
EHARBA BN LAY Y
g HEEEERREERLE
RS -

(b)

# 0O ON 1Ld0d3d TVANNV

HH
<



F o W M JILINIT Oddd

»

Il

Notes to Financial Statements B &3RR3R HMis:

Year ended 30 June 2008 HE—ZEZENEAA=1THIEE

2.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

©

@

HK (IFRIC)-Int 10 - Interim Financial
Reporting and Impairment

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1
July 2007, which requires that an impairment loss
recognised in a previous interim period in respect
of goodwill or an investment in either an equity
instrument classified as available-forsale or a
financial asset carried at cost is not subsequently
reversed. As the Group had no impairment losses
previously reversed in respect of such assets, the
inferpretation has had no impact on the financial
position or results of operations of the Group.

HK (IFRIC)-Int 11 - HKFRS 2 - Group
and Treasury Share Transactions

This interpretation requires arrangements whereby
an employee is granted rights to the Group's
equity instruments, to be accounted for as an
equity-settled scheme, even if the Group buys the
instruments from another party, or the shareholders
provide the equity instruments needed. HK(IFRIC)-Int
11 also addresses the accounting for share-based
payment fransactions involving two or more entities
within the Group.The adoption of this inferpretation
did not have any effect on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

(d)
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2.3

Noftfes to Financial Statements

Year ended 30 June 2008 &#ZE=

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8
HK (IFRIC) - INT 12

HK (IFRIC) - INT 13

HK (IFRIC) - INT 14

HK (IFRIC) - INT 15

HK (IFRIC) - INT 16

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2009

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 July

2008

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2008

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2009

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October

2008

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application.So far, it has concluded that while the adoption
of the certain new and revised HKFRSs may result in new or
amended disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs are
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Company's

Presentation of Financial Statements !
Borrowing costs !

Consolidated and Separated Financial
Statements

Puftable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation !

Share-based Payment: Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations !

Business Combinations *

Operating Segments !
Service Concession Arrangement

Customer Loyalty Programmes 2

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements
and their Interaction

Agreements for the construction of Real
Estate !

Hedges of Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation °

results of operations and financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies are under the Company controls, directly or
indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable.The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which
the Group has a long term interest of generally not less
than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in
a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.
The Group’s inferests in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates, which was not previously eliminated or
recognised in the consolidated reserves, is included as
part of the Group'’s interests in associates. Adjustments are
made to bring info line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company'’s interests in associates are
freated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell, and is defermined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit fo
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in
the period in which it arises unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting dafe as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may not no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill and certain financial
assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to defermine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
impairment loss is credited fo the income statement in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties

A party is considered fo be related to the Group if:

(o) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
infermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (i) has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
©) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

© the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d); or

® the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d)
or (e).

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condifion and
location for its infended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and
where the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset or as a replacement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
foits residual value over its estimated useful life.The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold Improvements 20% to 50%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%

Computer equipment and software 18% to 33 1/3%
Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects fo develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the fechnical feasibility of completfing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its infention to complete and its ability fo use or sell the

asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,

the availability of resources o complete the project and
the ability fo measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
dose not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products
commencing from the date when the products are put info
commercial production.

Leases

Lease where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited fo the income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case
of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable fransaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a
party fo it and assesses whether an embedded derivative
is separated from the host confract when the analysis
shows that the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivative are not closely related fo those of
the host contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets affer initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate to-evaluates this designation at the balance
sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assetfs
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets the require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as af fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
frading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments
or financial guarantee contracts. Gains or losses on
investments held for frading or these financial assets are
recognised in the income statement. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the income statement does
not include any interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for *Revenue recognition” below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or defterminable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated tfaking info account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains
and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-fo-
maturity when the Group has the positive infention and
ability fo hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is computed as
the amount initially recognised minus principal repayments,
plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interests method of any difference between the
initially recognised amount and the maturity amount. This
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the confract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rafe, fransaction costs and
all other premiums and discounts. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the investments
are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.

Available-forsale financial assets

Available-for-sale  financial assets are non-derivative
financial assefs in unlisted equity securities that are
designated as available for sale or are not classified in
any of the other three categories. After initial recognition,
available-forsale financial assets are measured at fair
value, with gains or losses recognised as a separate
component of equity until the investment is derecognised
or until the investment is determined fo be impaired, af
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported
in equity is included in the income statement. Interest
and dividends earned are reported as inferest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
the income statement as "Other income” in accordance
with the policies set out for "Revenue recognition” below.
Losses arising from the impairment of such investments are
recognised in the income statement as “Impairment losses
on available-forsale financial assets” and are transferred
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively fraded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference
fo quoted market bid prices at the close of business at
the balance sheet date. For investments where there is
no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
fechniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s
length market fransactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same;
a discounted cash flow analysis; option pricing models;
and other valuation models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account.
The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at
the reversal date.

In relation fo trade and other receivables, a provision for
impairment is made when there is objective evidence
(such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtor and significant changes in the
fechnological, market economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the Group will
not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the
receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.

Assefts carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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Noftfes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-forsale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the income statement, is transferred from equity to the
income statement. A provision for impairment is made for
available-for-sale equity investments when there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its
cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists.
The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgments. In addition, the Group evaluates other
factors, such as the share price volatility. Impairment losses
on equity instfruments classified as available for sale are
not reversed through the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

- the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

- the Group has fransferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assef,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither fransferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor fransferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
fo the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that fakes the form of a
guarantee over the tfransferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written
and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled option
or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement is the amount of the
fransferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except
in the case of a written put option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured
at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is limited fo the lower of the fair value of the
fransferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
(including interest-bearing loans)

Financial liabilities including frade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals and interest-bearing loans
are initially stated at fair value less directly attributable
fransaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. The related inferest expense
is recognised within “finance costs” in the income
statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for tfrading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
income statement.The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the income statement does not include any inferest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Where a confract confains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated as
a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis;
(i) the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their performance evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy:; or (iii) the financial liability contains
an embedded derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

24 T2

BA TSR AR B T

EENEE L C )

BAVEHRABRSRZMES
&

BRAFELABRRRZUBEEBRERE
1ERX Z Mz 2 M iE 8 E RN VIRERR
EREATECABGER ZHBEEE -

HWEEZMBABRZENASRIMLE -
AP BABERIEARAERZRE -
METR(BRBIRAXTETR) D
BAKEERZAE  BRIFERIEERE
Mz mTRASERN® - HEEXZHA
Bz BERENERRAER - RIRAR
MR 2 P E W S s B R T B 5 A )
ZECBBEMMR ZEMFR

M—EAABE—BRZERARITEL
B BBGREEAHNAKERRATER
ANERKRZVBEME  BRIFEZMAXITE
TEATEHREREEEEANRE - H
R ARNTETL RS HSIRAISE
Al e

WAFE TG - MEaESE R YIHE
REWEECARAFTECABRRLRZA
f& : ()ZIBEEMEIABREE R TR
EEMAEABIRAEHEEBEZERM
BT Z AN —BEE L (NVRED—
B aEs —BY  MEMBEED
RIECHEZ AR EIRREE RIEAFEF
E%ﬁ s (ii)ZM B aBEeEiR AT
T EBBI R

# 0O ON 1Ld0d3d TVANNV

HH
<



F o M M JILINIT Oddd

»

Il

Notes to Financial Statements B &3RR3R HMis:

Year ended 30 June 2008 HE—ZEZENEAA=1THIEE

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee confracts in the scope of HKAS
39 are accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee contract,
except when such contract is recognised at fair value
through profit or loss. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contfingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18 "Revenue”.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is freated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amount is recognised in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as
forward currency contracts o hedge its risks associated
with foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative confract is enfered info and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
faken directly to the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging (Continued)

The fair value of forward currency confracts is calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts
with similar maturity profiles.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relatfionship fo
which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the
risk management objective and its strategy for undertaking
the hedge. The documentation includes identification of
the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction,
the nature of the risk being hedged and how the Group will
assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting
the exposure fo changes in the hedged item’s fair value
or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges
are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an
ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been
highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods
for which they were designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting
are accounted for as follows:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is
recognised in the income statement.The change in the fair
value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is
recorded as a part of the carrying amount of the hedged
item and is also recognised in the income statement.

For fair value hedges relating fo items carried at amortised
cost, the adjustment fo carrying value is amortised through
the income statement over the remaining term fo maturity.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged
financial instrument for which the effective interest method
is used is amortised fo the income statement.

Amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists
and shall begin no later than when the hedged item ceases
fo be adjusted for changes in its fair value atftributable to
the risk being hedged. If the hedged item is derecognised,
the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in
the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated
as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change
in the fair value of the firm commitment aftributable to
the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with
a corresponding gain or loss recognised in the income
statement. The changes in the fair value of the hedging
instrument are also recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories represent trading merchandise and direct
costs incurred for IT contract work in progress and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realizable
value is based on estimated selling prices less estimated
costs fo be incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible info known amounts of cash,
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an infegral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
ferm deposits, which are noft restricted as fo use.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received in
advance. Revenue is recognised and deferred revenue is
released to the income statement when the corresponding
services are rendered.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to seftle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

BA TSR AR B T

2.4 TESTHEBME @)
TEEMIARYH(2)

INFAE 29 ()

46 E R TEREME 2R EREIHIAR

FEEEZR
EEPHA/EELRE  EHABAEBR
ﬂ/ﬁiﬂlﬂz NSRS

o e A HEE R EZ A

Bm R ANER
RiBa&k AR

rE

FRIEFHEAMIETRZEAMKAL
BN A
HFFEMERREEINRR - AEREA
8o AR FENREGEE
WETRE R E R P E £ 2 fh Rt A5

TRELZERKA
SRR

st
= o
ZAr

RERBEEEEY
REARLSRBRME

SEREE MO ZMITRAR -

REERBERMS
SEHTEAR

A S Uy 28

BREWEEFRERRZREER - RIEH
51 JEHE R B % R IE W

TR - Has
mENRERPER -

BE

WEBESEESRB AIER OXERIHET)
A& &
HEZER 2 2B

EERAEFTFEREERTL
%5 ARG T CARERR -
BESERE

MrFRRE S REHEFR - URATBER R
BRAEANBHEE S ESERNEELIPER
EEAZ=EAAIBzZEHRRREE
RE  HRBEREREZEBRAEER

CHREMRITERST
BERERBOFER  BEAETIIRGZ



24

Noftfes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet datfe of the future expenditures expected
fo be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income
statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
cerfain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns
discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
fax is recognised in the income statement, or in equity if
it relates fo items that are recognised in the same or a
different period directly in equity.

Current fax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured af the amount expected fo be
recovered from or paid fo the faxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between
the tfax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
tfemporary differences, except:

= where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the fime
of the tfransaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the
tfemporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Confinued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused fax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except;

- where the deferred tax asset relating fo the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
fransaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
fo the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced fo the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset fo be
utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet dafe and
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted af the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset,
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relafe fo the same faxable entity and the same taxatfion
authority.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income over the periods necessary to
match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that
it is infended fo compensate. Where the grant relates to
an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to the income statement over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the income statement by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue Recognition
Confract

Conftract revenue on the rendering of services comprises
the agreed contract amount and appropriate amounts
from variafion orders, claims and incentive payments
arising from professional IT contract services. Contract
costs incurred comprise equipment and material costs,
subcontracting costs, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the proportion of work completed to date to
the estimated tfotal work of the relevant contract. Where
the outcome of a contract cannot be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent that the expenses
incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they
are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred fo date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is treated as an amount due from contract
customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
fo date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is freated as an amount due to contract
customers.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Interest income

Inferest income is accrued on a fime basis, by reference
fo the principal outstanding and at the inferests rate
applicable.

Management fee

Management fee income is accrued, when the services
are rendered.

Employee benefits
Paid leave carries forward

Employee entitlements fo annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue fo employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up fo the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements fo sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in order to
be eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance in the event of the termination
of their employment. The Group is liable fo make such
a fermination of employment meets the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future
long service payments expected to be made.The provision
is based on the best estimate of the probable future
payments which have been earned by the employees from
their service to the Group to the balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund refirement benefits schemes (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible fo
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assetfs of the MPF scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required fo contribufe a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

Share-based payment fransactions

The Company operates a share optfion scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who confribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
fransactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
fransactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference fo the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a “Binomial Model”, further details
of which are given in note 25 to the financial statements.
In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is faken
of any performance conditions, other than conditions
linked to the price of the shares of the Company (*market
conditions”), if applicable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-seftled fransactions is recognised,
tfogether with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the dafte on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled fo the award (the “vesting
date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled tfransactions at each balance sheet date unfil the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are freated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the ferms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification, which increases the total fair value
of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is freated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outfstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS
2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS
2 only to equity-settled awards granted after 26 July 2000
that had not vested on 1 July 2005 and fo those granted
on or affer 1 July 2005.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
are initially recorded using the functional currency rates
ruling at the date of the fransactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are franslated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial fransactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
datfe when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. As af
the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company af the exchange rates ruling af the balance
sheet date and, their income statements are translated
info Hong Kong dollars atf the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
included in a separate component of the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating
fo that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)
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For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are franslated info
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
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overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
franslated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgment,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Provision for impairment of trade and bills
receivables

The policy for impairment allowances on trade and bills
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgment. A considerable amount of
judgment is required in assessing the ulfimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability fo
make payments, additional allowances may be required.

Estimated fair value of financial assets

The estimation of fair value of financial assets required the
Group fo estimate the future market value expected fo
be received from the disposal of the financial assets and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Further details are contained in nofe 23 to the financial
statements.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the
share options issued under the schemes are as follows:

(a) Pre-IPO share option plan

In recognising the contribution of certain directors
of the Company to the growth of the Group and/or
the listing of the shares of the Company on the
GEM, the shareholders adopted a Pre-IPO share
option plan (the "Pre-IPO Plan”) on 24 July 2000.
Pursuant fo the ferms of the Pre-IPO Plan, 25,725,752
options to subscribe for shares of the Company
were granted fo three directors on 26 July 2000, ot
an exercise price of HKS$0.70, with a vesting period
of six months from 2 August 2000. The options are
exercisable from 2 February 2001 until 23 July 2010.
However, each of the grantees is not allowed to
exercise in aggregate in exceed of 25% of all the
options granted within any six-month period. The
Pre-lPO Plan expired on 2 August 2000, but the

granted options remain exercisable.

The following share options were outstanding under

the Pre-IPO Plan during the year:

Number of share options

BRES A
Lapsed/
cancelled/
Name or exercised
category of At 1 July during At 30 June
participant 2007 the year 2008
R=ZBLE AEELAM/ R-BENE
SREZRRFRER tB-A B/ XB=tH
Director
£
Mr.Yip Sam Lo 1,986,367 - 1,986,367
Bk
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of share options

Data of grant of
share opfions#

Exercise price of
share optionst##

BRE<THESD  REBREAN: BRETEEH

HKS

B

2 February 2001 fo 23 July 2010 26 July 2000 5.57
—“ZT-E-f-HZ —ZTTE
“Z-ZErA-1=H tR=+7H




Notes to Financial Statements B &3k 3RMizE

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@

Pre-IPO share option plan (Continued)

# The vesting period of the share options is from
the datfe of grant until the commencement
of the exercise period.

## The exercise price of the share options is
subject to adjustment in the case of rights
or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

As a result of the fen-fo-one share consolidation
exercise and the one-fortwo rights issue on 30
December 2005, the exercise price of the aforesaid
outstanding share options was adjusted from
HK$0.557 to HKS$5.57 and the number of share
options outstanding adjusted from 19,863,670 to
1,986,367 in accordance with the terms of the Pre-
IPO Plan.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
1,986,367 outstanding share options under the
Pre-lPO Plan, which represented approximately
0.59% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
dafe. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 1,986,367
additional new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each,
with aggregate proceeds before related issue
expenses of approximately HKS11,064,000.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Share option scheme
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The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed
on 12 February 2007, adopted the New Share
Option Scheme ("Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group and/or fo enable the Group fo recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and
any enfity in which the Group holds any equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”). Eligible parficipants
of the Share Option Scheme include the directors
and employees of the Company, its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity, suppliers and customers
of the Group or any Invested Entity, any person
or entity that provides research, development or
technological support to the Group or any Invested
Entity, any adviser or consultant to any area of
business or business development of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity, any joint venture
partner or business alliance that co-operates with
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
in any area of business operation or development
and any shareholder of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity. The Share Optfion Scheme should, unless
ofherwise terminated or amended, remain in force
for ten years from 12 February 2007.

The fotal number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at 12 February
2007, being the datfe of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme, (i.e. not exceeding 24,012,000
shares of the Company). The Company may seek
approval of the shareholders in a general meeting
for refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option
Scheme save that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options fo be
granted under the Share Optfion Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company under
the limit as “refreshed” shall not exceed 10% of the
fotal number of shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the refreshed limit. Options previously
granted under the Share Optfion Scheme and any
other schemes of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the limit.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share opfion
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares in issue from fime
fo time. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted fo each parficipant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the date of grant. Each
grant of options to any director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder must be approved by
independent non-executive directors.

Where any grant of opfions to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates would resultinthe shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
already and to be granted in excess 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital or with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by
the Company’s shareholders.

The offer of a grant of share options shall be
accepted within 28 days from the date of offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HKS$1 in fotal by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, save that such period shall not be
more than fen years from the date of the offer of
the share options subject fo the provisions for early
fermination set out in the Share Option Scheme.
There is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before the exercise of the subscription
right attaching thereto except otherwise imposed
by the board of directors. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company's shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Share option scheme (Continued)

BA TSR AR B T

On 9 July 2007, the Company granted a fotal of
5,040,000 share options to a director and eligible
employees under the Share Option Scheme which
were accepted by the respective director and
employees on 16 July 2007 and 19 July 2007. As
at 30 June 2008, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was
5,040,000, representing 1.50% of the shares of the

Company in issue.

The following share options were outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

B

(b)

EsTEl ')
R ETT B (®)
R-ZZEZ+FLANHE ' KAFIR
BRERETERARAR —EER
AéWE S 15 H 4 4£5,040,00015
N BB IR o sZHLEBRRHE S RIR
:;ﬁftitﬁ+/\ﬁ&f$2t
FHA+NBEZEEREERE
E\ﬁ)ﬁix Equ—‘;)\fﬁ/\ﬂ +
B FTEEREEERITEZER
B A5,040,00010 « KERAR
AIBEEITIRDEE 1.50%

VAR AN 6 AR 5 AR A T 813

BREXE
Name or Granted Outstanding
category of At 1 July during as at
participant 2007 the year 30 June 2008
R-ZENE

SRELER R=BBtE R ~A=1H
B &R tA-H R MA{TEHE
Director
Ex
Mr. Chow Siu Kwong - 2,880,000 2,880,000
AL
Employees - 1,440,000 1,440,000
BT
Employees - 320,000 320,000
BT
Employees - 400,000 400,000
BT

- 5,040,000 5,040,000
* The closing price of the securitiesimmediately

before the dates on which the options were
granted on 16 July 2007 and 19 July 2007

were HK$0.69 and HK$0.53 respectively.

i AR IETT 5 2 B AR e
Exercisable Date of Exercise price
period of grant of of share
share options ~ share options* options
& fRE
RREZ TS ERERS: ZiIRE
BT
HKS
9 July 2007 fo 16 July 2007 0.43
8 July 2017
—TTE e 3
tﬂ P=ES tA+<A
T—tF
tﬂ)\E!
9 July 2007 to 16 July 2007 0.43
8 July 2012
“ETLE “ETE
tAnAZE R RWN=
—2——F
TANR
9 July 2007 fo 19 July 2007 0.43
8 July 2010
e 2 e 3
tANAZE tAtNA
—T-EF
fﬂ/\E
9 July 2007 fo 19 July 2007 0.43
8 July 2012
—TTE e 3
tANRE tAThE
2
tANR
* —EEHEFE+LATABERD
ZEHELATNAEREER

# A HR T B 5 511 /20.69
BT 20.538 T °
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

No options were exercised/lapsed/cancelled
under the Share Option Scheme during the year.

Share-Based Payments

16 July 2007
—EEtE
tA+H
Fair value at grant date HKS$1,697,5207% 7T
B RZAFE
Number of share

options granted 2,880,000
Kt ERiEs e
Exercise price HK$0.437% 7T
17EfE
Expected volatility 96.95%
TEHK IR
Expected life 9.99 yearsF
TEHASEHA
Risk-free rafe 4.790%
ERERE
Expected dividend yield Nil
L IR e i

The Fair value of the 5,040,000 share options
granted during the year was calculated using the
Binominal Model.The expected volatility is used the
5-year, weekly annualized volatility of the underlying
stock. Risk free rate represents the 10-year yields to
maturity of respective Hong Kong Exchange Fund
Note as at the valuation date. Batch 1 is granted to
Director, Batch 2-4 is granted to Employees..

The Group recognised the total expense of
HK$2,721,000 for the year ended 30 June 2008
(2007: Nil) in relation to share options granted by
the Company.

The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital sfructure of the
Company, result in the issue of 5,040,000 additional
new ordinary shares of HKS$0.10 each, with
aggregate proceeds before related issue expenses
of approximately HK$2,167,200.

As at the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme was 18,972,000, representing
approximately 5.6% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

Year ended 30 June 2008 HZE—ZEZENEAA=1HILFE

25. I EETE e
(b) BRESE (2)

RER - I 8RR ST
BT AT R BUH ©

DB T Z2RE
Share option grant date
BRERLAH

16 July 2007 19 July 2007 19 July 2007
—EBtHF —EBELE —EELE
tA+H tA+hH tAt+hH
HK$738,961/8 7T HKS$168,736/8 7T HK$115,553/% 7T
1,440,000 400,000 320,000
HK$0.437% 7T HK$0.437% 7T HKS$0.437% 7T
96.95% 96.95% 96.95%
4.98 yearsF 4.98 yearsF 2.97 yearst
4.790% 4.801% 4.801%
Nil Nil Nil
i = i

AN R #% H 2 5,040, 0008% B P& #
ZAFEDE-_EAEAGE -8
HRIE LR AARERG 2 AEHE
ABEH 2 R EFERR - ERKRR
ERFTHESHEEEARZHES
ZRBIH o Wk - FHERER
MREE - M= UHLRE R R
RET -

R-ZZZNFRA=+TH A&H
ER NGRS Su ol 3 g R
2,721,000 T( =T F L5 :
) o

REBARARERARE  BH
TEHRTEBRESE®RET
5,040,0000% & A% | 50.107% 7T
ZREINEBERRD - PAEHRA
#8 78 (0 Bk 46 BE 2 17 B X AT ) 4
2,167,200 7T °

EAFERA - A HERER S H
17 8 B £ 48 2% 7318,972,0005
KRERARAZ2HBEZETRMNO L
5.6% °
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2008
S LI
HK$’000
FHL
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375

1,326




F o M M JILINIT Oddd

»

Il

Notes to Financial Statements B f&3R 3R Mis:

Year ended 30 June 2008 HE—ZEENEAA=1THILEFE

29.

30.

COMMITMENTS

In addition fo the operating lease arrangement detailed in
note 27, the Group had the following capital commitments
at the balance sheet date:

Authorised, but not contracted for Bz /E{BRFT4
- Equity capital contribution —mfEARNEABR
to a subsidiary (Note a) (HfzEa)
Note:
(a) In respect of the equity capital confribution to a 80%-

held subsidiary fo be established in the People’s Republic
of China. The registration process for this entity had
commenced in March 2007.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In September 2003, a subsidiary of the Group, Epro Systems
(China) Limited ("EPRO China”), and Linkfull Investment
Group Limited (‘Linkfull”) entered into an agreement
whereby EPRO China agreed fo sell and Linkfull agreed to
purchase 7,000 shares of HK$1 each (the “Sale Shares”)
in EPROgiistics Limited ("EPROgistics”) at the consideration
of HKS$1,750,000 (the “Consideration”), which was
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by Mr. Wong
Tak ("Mr.Wong"), a then staff of the Group and a beneficial
owner of Linkfull.

The Consideration for the sale and purchase of the Sale
Shares shall be seftled in fwo franches as follows:

(a) as to HK$1 million, upon signing of the agreement
for sale and purchase dated 10 September 2003
(the "Agreement”);

(b) as to HK$750,000, at anytime thereafter but in any
event on or before 30 June 2005.

The first franche of the HK$1,000,000 was received by
EPRO China on 10 September 2003 and pursuant to
two supplemental deeds dated 30 August 2005 and 11
January 2006 respectively, the due date for sefflement of
the second franche was extended to 30 June 2006.

29.

30.

R IE

BRETEE27pr it 2 R e A B - REER

BEEBRBATEAREE
Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENEF T
HK$"000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
- 1,027
5L

(@  MKBATEAEABLEDERT R
BEAZNTEAZHBAT A2
EHEEMFEOR DT LE= A
e

AR A

ZTE=FNA AEE—ZRHEBEAA
SBRSG(RE)AR2A(ZEFRE])
KLinkfull Investment Group Limited
(TLinkfull DETSZ — e - Bt - 58
FEREHEMmLinkiullERE S BYR
BEERAR(I SEYRAE ) 7,0008%
BREEIATZRO(EERG]) - R
871,750,000 T ([R(E 1) » WEKRE
EER—2BE(HALNKfullZERESR
A ) Wong TakZt 4 ([Wong 7t 4 |) &1+
i~ Al e M AR o

BEHER D 2RES DT XD M
A

(o) 1,000,000 TAETEHA-Z
T=FNAT+REEHHE( ]

B

(b) 750,000 72 1 b4 BE B S 4 - 1
EHWABR -EEREAA=T
EEFA K

SEREER-_ZZ=F LA +HEENE
Hi3X181,000,000/& 7T - R4 A #5 5l &
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2005, apart from
further HK$37,000 was received by EPRO China, Linkfull
failed/refused to pay the balance of the Consideration
in the sum of approximately HK$713,000 together with the
intferest thereon.

Despite of repeated extension and in view of the default
in payment, EPRO China filed a claim against Mr. Wong
on 8 August 2006 to the District Court of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in respect of the outstanding
balance of the Consideration of approximately HK$713,000
together with the interest from 1 July 2005 fill payment.

Notwithstanding the confidence of the directors of the
Company on successful claim of the said amount, a full
provision for the receivable of the outstanding principal
amount of HK$713,000 had been made in the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2006.

During the year ended 30 June 2008, the Company
reached a settlement agreement with Mr. Wong, pursuant
to which, a sum of HK$300,000 (note 5) was received from
Mr. Wong for full and final settlement of the claim. As at 30
June 2008, the legal proceeding was discontinued and
ferminated.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the fransactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
the following fransactions with a director during the year:

N TF—REZZHE

Inferest paid to a director

Loan from a director, unsecured ~ —RZEBEEF -
Noftes:
(@) Inferest was charged at Hong Kong dollar prime lending

rate per annum.

30.

31.

Notes
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BT ER AR B T

ZZE\FAREZTHLEFE

VL ¥/ D,

REEZZTETRF+_A=+—HILF
E %58+ ED KIS 537,000
JC 9N Linkfullk 82 /1B 8 X 4 B &5 4
713,000 T2 REBHFEFBFE ©

BEBEZREH ERAENR 58
FER-_ZEENFENANBAEZETER
RATH R & AR - R EEREHRTE
713,000 LERB=_TETAF LA —H
FENE B IEZF B MWongst £ H
% o

Wﬁ$”ﬂ%$ﬁ%TmﬂL@ttﬁ
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BARELF713,0008 TIEREEE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT £,
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before fax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings) and the
Group’s and the Company’s equity.
Group
FrEE
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
BT BRBEADEF
#m (Rd)  #Bi (BD)
% HKS$'000
% FET
30 June 2008 —EEN\FXRAZTH
Hong Kong dollar  #7t 1% -
(%) -
30 June 2007 ZEZLFERAZTH
Hong Kong dollar 77t 1% 13)
(1%) 13

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal fransactional currency exposures
as the sales and purchases of the Group were mainly
fransacted in United States dollars ("USD"), Renminbi
("RMB"), Japanese Yen ("Yen"), Singapore dollars ("SGD"),
Australian dollars ("AUD"), Canadian dollars ("CAD"),
and Hong Kong dollars (HKD). Approximately 66% (2007:
60%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operating units
making the sale, and almost 88% (2007: 87%) of costs are
denominated in the units’ other functional currency.

During the years ended 30 June 2008 and 2007, the
exchange rate of USD and Yen were more stable.
Approximately 16% (2007: 10%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in these stable currencies.

BT ER AR B T

ZZE\FAREZTHLEFE

B R e B I B AR RBUR
(%)

M TFIRBRARERBART (EFHE
Bl HET) BARERALFIEZ T
BABBE Y BAE  FAEMEFERT

2

=% .

=
Company
NN

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) in (decrease)
in equity  basis points in equity
BA& ¥ [EN

#i/ (hd)  #BI0Rd) 8B/ (BD)
HK$'000 % HK$'000
FHET % FHET
- 1% -
- 1% -
13) 1% -
13 1% -

S [ B

HRASEZHERRBERIUAET ( [E
7Tl ) CARE (TAR%]) ~BE (T
BE ) ~#Fsor ( [Fmsoc) ) R
st ( &l ) -~ (Tl ) RExT
(BTl ) TR BARBEEARR
ZFEWRER - AEEN66% (ZTTAF :
60%) ZIHEETTIHE 2 B E B 2 T8

ERLSNEREME - MiXiL8s% (—TF+
F 1 87%) ZAARRIABERL 2 AL EHEIASN
BREE

RBE_ZZENGFR-_TTLFRA= +E|
LEEER - %E&EZET\B&EZ%%
SEDN16% (ZZZT+EF : 10%) Ziﬁ%M
ZEEKEE -
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date fo a reasonably possible change in

these foreign currencies SGD, AUD, CAD and RMB.

30 June 2008

—EENFARA=TH

If HKD weakens against SGD i 7 7T 5 BT AN T 55
If HKD strengthens against SGD s 78 7T 5 R NI T E o
If HKD weakens against AUD fim A 7T H ORI 55

If HKD strengthens against AUD 78 7T S R T B8

If HKD weakens against CAD fis 7T 5 hnc i 55

If HKD strengthens against CAD fis 7 7T 5 I T Ese

If HKD weakens against RMB BT 5 AR5

If HKD strengthens against RMB BT AR R
30 June 2007 —EELFARA=TH
If HKD weakens against SGD il 7T H 2T N3 T 55
If HKD strengthens against SGD s 78 7T 5 FT N T 5
If HKD weakens against AUD fis B 7T H ORI 55

If HKD strengthens against AUD 78 7T 5 R TT B8

If HKD weakens against CAD fis B 7T 5 hnc i ss

If HKD strengthens against CAD fis 78 7T 5 AT iR

If HKD weakens against RMB BT H AR B 55

If HKD strengthens against RMB BT AR R

The Group requires all its operating units to use forward

currency confracts fo eliminate the foreign currency
exposures for currencies other than US dollars and on
any individual transactions in excess of HK$500,000 or
equivalent, for which payment is anticipated more than one
month after the Group has enfered info a firm commitment
for a sale or purchase. The forward currency contracts
must be in the same currency as the hedged item. It is
the Group’s policy not to enfer into forward confracts until
a firm commitment is in place.

The Group has no foreign currency contracts outstanding
at 30 June 2008 and 2007.

BA TSR AR B T

33. KRk ERBZENMBIR
(%)
HEREN XA &)
TRERTEEZBE MBS EFTTE 2 IF)
T ' LK%@Z@%%EWBT%*UE’\\?*MEl%‘f%ﬁj]l]i)ii
JC ~ MBI~ MTTARAREEE R HIRAIEA]
QEQQH%Z@E‘Z\E °

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
exchange rate before tax in equity
ExL#A  BRBADEF  EzmENS
(&)  #m, CRD) (R2)
% HKS$'000 HK$'000
% TR THTT
5% (102) (102)
(5%) 102 102
5% (5) ®)
(5%) 5 5
5% 42 42
(5%) (42) (42)
5% (388) (388)
(5%) 388 388
5% (110) (110)
(5%) 110 110
5% = =
(5%) o) o)
5% 53 53
(5%) (53) (53
5% (534) (534)
(5%) 534 534

AEBREMBLEEN - 3LEEE500,000% T
ok [ & £ BE 0 T HAAE — (8 A A IA R R 32 (8 5l &2
SRARETVHREEEAERERERAHN
NS EMXTIANEE 2 SRR - EHEE
BHWBEMEHAE 2 ERHAR - AKREZK
RAMGHEAGRAIM AR LEHEK -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In additional, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant. For transactions
that are not denominated in the functional currency of
the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit
terms without the specific approval of the management.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale
financial assets arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount
of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer, by geographical region and by industry sector.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within
the Group.

Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This fool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

Infernally generated cash flow and bank borrowings are
the general sources of funds fo finance the operations of
the Group. The majority of the Group’s banking facilities
are subject fo floating rates and are renewable annually.
The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to
ensure that it has adequate financial resources to meet
its financial obligatfions. The Group aims fo maintain
flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit
lines and sufficient bank deposits to meet its short ferm
cash requirements. The Group’s liquidity risk management
includes making available standby banking facilities and
diversifying the funding sources.

33.
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and fo maintain healthy capital ratios in order fo
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustmentstoit,inlight of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders of issue new shares. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the years ended 30 June 2008 and 2007.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net
debt. Net debt includes frade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals and inferest-bearing loans less
pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents, and
excludes discontinued operations. Capital includes equity
affributable to equity holders of the Company.The gearing
ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

Trade and bills payables BB SRR REE
Other payables and accruals
Inferest-bearing loans
Less: Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

FHRZER
W BRI
RekREEER

Net debt BEIFE

Equity attributable to equity holders — #zi3H A B (5

Total capital HER
Capital and net debt BERRERFE
Gearing ratio BARE B X

HA A ROA R R RE

33.
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Group
AEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ZTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
3,303 7,992
12,019 17,364
- 1,169
(10,249) (15,419)
(18,792) (9,235)
(13,719) 1,871
27,107 11,072
27,107 11,072
13,388 12,943
N/ATEA 14%
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2008
—EEBN\E
HK$°000
FERT

50,825
(23.816)

27,009
10,456
(983)
(13,696)
(26,989)

(213)
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